

City of Turlock Annual Action Plan For CDBG funds

&

Turlock/Stanislaus Urban County HOME Consortium funds



Fiscal Year 2022-2023

Approval by the Turlock City Council on July 26, 2022 Submittal to U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development August 5, 2022

> Prepared by the City of Turlock Housing Program Services Division 156 South Broadway, Suite 140 Turlock, CA 95380 (209) 668-5610 – Fax (209) 668-5120 – TDD 1 (800) 735-2929 www.cityofturlock.org

Contents

| Annual Action Plan | 3 |
|--|------------|
| AP-15 Expected Resources | 3 |
| AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives | |
| AP-35 Projects | |
| AP-38 Project Summary | |
| AP-50 Geographic Distribution | |
| AP-55 Affordable Housing | |
| AP-60 Public Housing | 22 |
| AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities2 | <u>'</u> 4 |
| AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing2 | 27 |
| AP-85 Other Actions2 | 28 |
| AP-90 Program Specific Requirements | \$4 |

Annual Action Plan

AP-15 Expected Resources

Introduction

The Annual Action Plan for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 includes information for the City of Turlock as well as the City of Turlock/ Stanislaus County HOME Consortium (HOME Consortium). The City of Turlock has determined that it no longer could act as the Lead Entity for the HOME Consortium and elected to disband the HOME Consortium and allow Stanislaus County to create a new HOME Consortium. The City of Turlock will become a partner of the new HOME Consortium in the upcoming fiscal year. All of the information included in this Plan related to the HOME Consortium includes all funding from previous years grants and revenues. Amendments to the AAP will be made as needed.

During the five-year Con Plan period, the Stanislaus Urban County expects to receive approximately \$2.3 million annually in CDBG funding, for a five-year total of \$11.5 million. During the five-year Con Plan period, the Stanislaus Urban County expects to receive approximately \$200,000 annually in ESG funding, for a five-year total of \$1.0 million. In addition, Stanislaus County, as the Administrative Entity (AE) for the local CoC for the state CA-ESG program, expects to use \$1.3 million within the next five years. Stanislaus County is the Administrative Entity (AE) on behalf of the CoC for the state's California Emergency Solutions and Housing (CESH) and the California Emergency Solutions Grant (CA-ESG) program. Stanislaus County also expects to use \$300,000 in CalHome Program Income for housing related activities and administration costs over the five-year Con Plan period.

During the five-year Con Plan period, the City of Turlock expects to receive \$650,000 annually in CDBG funding, for a five-year total of \$3.25 million. The HOME Consortium also anticipates an estimated \$1.2 million in annual HOME funds, for a five-year total of \$6.0 million. The City of Turlock expects to use \$1,000,000 in CalHome funding for housing activities and administrative costs over the five-year Con Plan period.

It is important to understand that during the development of this Consolidated Plan, the County, all Urban County Cities, and the City of Turlock were put in a position to react to the unique coronavirus, COVID-19. In April 2020, Congress passed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES). The CARES allocated CDBG and ESG funds to entitlement grantees to be used to respond the COVID-19 outbreak, navigating the varied impacts. Stanislaus Urban County received CDGB and ESG funds, and the City of Turlock received CDBG funds. This strategic

Plan and the subsequent 2022 Annual Action Plan will address how those funds plan to be used.

Anticipated Resources

| Program | Source | Uses of Funds | Exp | ected Amoun | t Available Yea | ar 1 | Expected Amount | Narrative Description |
|---------|---------------------------------|---|-----------------------------|-----------------------|--------------------------------|--------------|--|--|
| | of Funds | | Annual Allocation: \$ | Program Income: \$ | Prior Year Resources: \$ | Total: \$ | Available Remainder of ConPlan \$ | |
| CDBG | public - federal public - | Acquisition Admin and Planning Economic Development Housing Public Improvements Public Services | \$627,012 \$138,879 | 130,000 | 1,700,000 | 2,457,012 | 3,361,000 | Funds will be utilized for affordable housing, temporary relocation assistance, infrastructure, Fair Housing, Public Services, and Administration. |
| | federal | Homebuyer assistance Homeowner rehab Multifamily rental new construction Multifamily rental rehab New construction for ownership TBRA | | | | | | affordable housing, rehabilitation, and down- payment assistance for first-time homebuyers. |
| Other | Public- federal | Economic Development Public Services | 0 | 0 | 741,302 | 741,302 | 0 | CDBG: CARES Community Emergency Response |

Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how matching requirements will be satisfied

Leveraging HUD funding allows the City and City of Turlock/ Stanislaus County HOME Consortium (HOME Consortium) to bring in local, state, and other sources to combine with federal financial resources to maximize the reach and impact of the City's HUD-funded programs. The Federal HOME program requires a matching contribution from non-federal resources of at least 25 percent of program disbursements. This is equivalent to \$1 of non-federal funds for every \$4 of federal HOME funds.

City of Turlock will continue to use State HOME and CalHome Program Income as additional funding sources for the first-time home buyer program. In previous years the city received grant funds from the State for HOME and CalHome programs.

In previous years, combinations of Redevelopment Agency Housing Set-Aside funds, as well as Low-Income Housing Tax Credits have been used to construct rental housing or rehabilitation projects. Some of these funds were eligible and used as matching for the HOME program. Turlock and the HOME Consortium will continue to look for other funds to match and leverage CDBG and HOME funds.

If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs identified in the plan

The City of Turlock Redevelopment Agency owns a parcel with a small office building. The building is currently leased for \$1.00 per year to Haven Women's Center. The intent of the five-year lease has been to bring much needed anti-domestic violence services to City of Turlock and

overcome the transportation barrier of clients and families traveling the 15 miles to Modesto to get to much needed services.

AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives

Goals Summary Information

| # | Goal Name | Start Year | End Year | Category | Geographic Area | | Needs Addressed | Funding | Goal Outcome Indicator |
|---|--------------------|---------------|-------------|-------------|-------------------|---|--------------------|--------------------|---------------------------|
| 1 | Increase and | 2020 | 2024 | Affordable | Turlock | • | Affordable Housing | CDBG: | Rental units |
| | Improve Supply of | | | Housing | Ceres | | | \$905 <i>,</i> 000 | rehabilitated: 10 |
| | Affordable Housing | | | | Hughson | | | HOME: | Household Housing |
| | | | | | Newman | | | \$3,362,765 | Unit Homeowner |
| | | | | | Oakdale | | | | Housing |
| | | | | | Patterson | | | | Rehabilitated 14 |
| | | | | | Waterford | | | | Household Housing |
| | | | | | Unincorporated | | | | Unit |
| | | | | | Stanislaus County | | | | Direct Financial |
| | | | | | Riverbank | | | | Assistance to |
| | | | | | | | | | Homebuyers: 12 |
| | | | | | | | | | Households Assisted |
| 2 | Work to End and | 2020 | 2024 | Homeless | Turlock | • | Homeless Services | CDBG: | Homeless Person |
| | Prevent | | | | | | | \$10,000 | Overnight Shelter: |
| | Homelessness | | | | | | | | 275 persons |
| | | | | | | | | | Assisted |
| | | | | | | | | | Other: 1 Other |
| 3 | Improve | 2020 | 2024 | Non-Housing | Turlock | • | Public | CDBG: | Public Facility or |
| | Infrastructure and | | | Community | | | Infrastructure and | \$100,000 | Infrastructure |
| | Public Facilities | | | Development | | | Facility | | Activities for |
| | | | | | | | Improvement | | Low/Moderate |

| | | | | | | | | | Income Housing Benefit: 1 facility |
|---|----------------------------|------|------|---|---------|---|--|------------------------------------|---|
| 4 | Provide Public Services | 2020 | 2024 | Homeless Non-Homeless Special Needs | Turlock | • | Public Services | CDBG: \$120,000 | Public service activities for Low/Moderate income Housing Benefit: 1,594 Households Assisted |
| 6 | Administration | 2020 | 2024 | Administration | Turlock | • | Public Infrastructure and Facility Improvement Homeless Services Public Services Affordable Housing Community and Economic Development Public Services Homeless Services Community Emergency Responses | CDBG: \$125,402 HOME: \$0.00 | Other: 1 Other |

Goal Descriptions

| 1 | Goal Name | Increase and Improve Supply of Affordable Housing |
|---|------------------|--|
| | Goal Description | This goal will work to acquire real property and/or units in order for them to be used to increase the number of affordable housing units in Turlock. Projects under this goal will support both renter- and owner-occupied units in the aim to increase the value and bring the housing unit up to code. The City will offer loans and grants to maintain single and multifamily affordable housing stock for low- and moderate-income households. Projects under this goal may also provide first-time homebuyer assistance. |
| 2 | Goal Name | Work to End and Prevent Homelessness |
| | Goal Description | Funding towards this goal will support organizations providing shelter and services for those experiencing homelessness; this goal may include emergency shelter, transitional, permanent supportive, and rapid re-housing services. |
| 3 | Goal Name | Improve Infrastructure and Public Facilities |
| | Goal Description | This goal may provide funding for projects that will improve sidewalks, streets, curbs, gutters, and sewers. |
| 4 | Goal Name | Provide Public Services |
| | Goal Description | This goal will address basic needs as well as provide important services to the community. Projects and activities under this goal may provide meals as congregate sites and provide recreational services, |
| 5 | Goal Name | Community Emergency Response Program |
| | Goal Description | Projects under this goal will support small businesses and agencies address community emergency needs as a result of pandemic related issues. |
| 6 | Goal Name | Administration |
| | Goal Description | Administration for CDBG and HOME programs. |

AP-35 Projects

Introduction

As shown in the previous section, AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives, Stanislaus Urban County, the City of Turlock, and the HOME Consortium have identified goals to address housing and community development needs for Fiscal Year 2022-2023. During this year, the Urban County, the City of Turlock and the HOME Consortium will work towards achieving all of the goals outlined above. Below are the proposed projects funded with FY 2022-2023 federal funding from the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and the HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME)

| # | Project Name |
|----|--|
| 1 | Housing Rehabilitation (CDBG) 2022-2023 |
| 2 | Temporary Relocation (CDBG) 2022-2023 |
| 3 | We Care Program -Turlock (CDBG-PSG) 2022-2023 |
| 4 | United Samaritans Foundation-Food Box (CDBG-PSG) 2022-2023 |
| 5 | United Samaritans Foundation-Senior Meals (CDBG-PSG) 2022-2023 |
| 6 | City of Turlock Recreation (CDBG-PSG) 2022-2023 |
| 7 | Center for Human Services (CDBG-PSG) 2022-2023 |
| 8 | Project Sentinel (Fair Housing) (CDBG-PSG) 2022-2023 |
| 9 | United Samaritans Foundation-Eye Care (CDBG PSG) 2022-2023 |
| 10 | Public Service Emergency Payments (CDBG-PSG) 2022-2023 |
| 11 | Public Improvements (CDBG) 2022-2023 |
| 12 | Affordable Housing Development (CDBG) 2022-2023 |
| 13 | Program Administration (CDBG) 2022-2023 |
| 14 | Consortium Affordable Housing (HOME) 2022-2023 |
| 15 | Housing Rehabilitation (HOME) 2022-2023 |
| 16 | First Time Home Buyer Loans (HOME) 2022-2023 |

Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs

There are three specific HUD goals for the CDBG program. They are:

- Provide decent housing
- Provide a suitable living environment
- Expand economic opportunities

The Priority Needs section within this Consolidated Plan identifies the key priority needs in both the Urban County and the City of Turlock. These priority needs are reflected in the projects identified above. More specifically, the needs expressed by data in the Needs Assessment and Market Analysis are taken into account when considering projects to allocate resources to.

Obstacles in addressing underserved needs are:

- A lack of available funds and resources
- The constraints and restrictions of the funding programs requirements

AP-38 Project Summary

Project Summary Information

| Project Name | 1. Housing Rehabilitation (CDBG) FY 2022-2023 |
|-----------------|---|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Increase and Improve Supply of Affordable Housing |
| Needs Addressed | Affordable Housing |
| Funding | CDBG: \$900,000 |
| Description | Rehabilitation of existing housing in Turlock with loans and grants to maintain single and multifamily affordable housing. (Matrix code: 14A: Single-Unit Residential, National Objective: LMH, Regulatory Citation: 570.202) |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |

| Estimate the number and | 10 families |
|----------------------------|--|
| type of families that will | |
| benefit from the | |
| proposed activities | |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Rehabilitation of existing housing in Turlock FY 2022-2023 |

| Project Name | 2. Temporary Relocation (CDBG) FY 2022-2023 |
|--|---|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Increase and Improve Supply of Affordable Housing |
| Needs Addressed | Affordable Housing |
| Funding | CDBG: \$5,000 |
| Description | Funding for temporary relocation of households undergoing housing rehabilitation. These funds are used to provide assistance with the costs of temporary relocation during construction of their homes. |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities | 3 families |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Temporary relocation for Turlock projects |

| Project Name | 3. We Care Program- Turlock (CDBG-PSG) FY 2022-2023 |
|-----------------|---|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Provide Public Services |
| Needs Addressed | Public Services |
| Funding | CDBG: \$10,000 |

| Description | The We Care Program serves chronically homeless men over the age of 18. The shelter has the capacity to shelter 49 men at night. The shelter provides a safe and stable environment for individuals who would otherwise be sleeping on the street or in places not meant for human habitation. (Matrix code: 05Z Other Public Services, National Objective: LMC, Regulatory Citation: 570.201(e)) |
|----------------------------|---|
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and | 275 Homeless men over 18 years old |
| type of families that will | |
| benefit from the | |
| proposed activities | |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Emergency Men's Shelter |

| Target Areas | Turlock |
|----------------------------|--|
| Goals Supported | Provide Public Services |
| Needs Addressed | Public Services |
| Funding | CDBG: \$25,000 |
| Description | The food box program provides food assistance to income eligible individuals and families in Turlock who are experiencing food insecurity and lack sufficient quantities of food. Food boxes are distributed on the last Tuesday and Friday of every month. Homeless individuals are eligible for a food box every month. Each box is filled with ample provisions to feed every person in the family three meals a day for three days. (Matrix code: 05Z Other Public Services, National Objective: LMC, Regulatory Citation: 570.201(e)) |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and | 1,200 People/725 Households |
| type of families that will | |
| benefit from the | |
| proposed activities | |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Emergency food box program |

| Project Name | 5. United Samaritan's Foundation- Senior Congregate Lunch (CDBG-PSG) FY 2022-2023 |
|--|---|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Provide Public Services |
| Needs Addressed | Public Services |
| Funding | CDBG: \$10,000 |
| Description | The senior congregate meal program aims to provide age-appropriate nutrient dense mid-day meals to residents 60 years of age and older. The congregate meals offer comprehensive nutritionally planned meals and a social element to help seniors create friendship and relationships. (Matrix code: 05Z Other Public Services, National Objective: LMC, Regulatory Citation: 570.201(e)) |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities | 35 Individuals/families |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Senior Congregate Meal Program |

| Project Name | 6. City of Turlock Recreation (CDBG-PSG) FY 2022-2023 |
|-----------------|--|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Provide Public Services |
| Needs Addressed | Public Services |
| Funding | CDBG: \$10,000 |
| Description | Turlock Recreation Services strengthens the community's fabric, health and well-being, economic base, and security. Through quality programming and implementation, Recreation Services provides safe, supervised activities for residents of all ages. Families and individuals have the opportunity to enhance their lives by participating in fitness programs, support activities, family events, community traditions, arts, social and educational activities, and a wide range of enrichment classes. Scholarships are available for participation. |

| | Participants must be 18 years of age or younger or 62 years of age and older. (Matric code: 05Z Other Public Services, National Objective: LMC Regulatory Citation: 570.201(e)) |
|----------------------------|---|
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and | 25 Households/50 Individuals |
| type of families that will | |
| benefit from the | |
| proposed activities | |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Recreation for all scholarship program |

| Project Name | 7. Center for Human Services (CDBG-PSG) FY 2022-2023 |
|--|--|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Provide Public Services |
| Needs Addressed | Public Services |
| Funding | CDBG: \$10,000 |
| Description | Street outreach and navigation/case management services specifically targeted toward Turlock youth, ages 13-24 years of age who are homeless and unsheltered. (Matrix code: 05Z Other Public Services, National Objective: LMC, Regulatory Citation: 570.201(e)) |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities | 15 Individuals |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Street Outreach and navigation of homeless youth |

| Project Name | 8. Project Sentinel (CDBG-PSG) FY 2022-2023 |
|--|--|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Provide Public Services |
| Needs Addressed | Public Services |
| Funding | CDBG: \$10,000 |
| Description | Project Sentinel will provide comprehensive Fair Housing services of complaint investigation, community outreach and education, problem solving and dispute resolution. Fair Housing is achieved by informing the community and target populations about fair housing and the respective housing rights and responsibilities. Complaint/problem resolutions are achieved through education, conciliation and enforcement referral. Services are provided by trained counselors who advise callers of their rights and help the parties reach resolutions, civil rights protection, rescind evictions, refunded deposits, improved code compliance, privacy rights respected, and predatory lending practices averted. (Matrix Code: 05J Fair Housing Activities-subject to Public Services cap, National Objective: LMC, Regulatory Citation: 570.201(e)) |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities | 7 Individuals/5 case files along with community outreach and education. |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Fair Housing Services |

| Project Name | 9. United Samaritans Foundation-Eye Care (CDBG) FY 2022-2023 |
|-----------------|---|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Provide Public Service |
| Needs Addressed | Public Services |
| Funding | CDBG: \$10,000 |
| Description | They will provide free access to professional eye exams for Turlock residents over the age of 55 with limited income. Based upon the recommendations for the patient, they will also be given free prescriptive frames/lenses. (Matrix code: 05Z Other Public Services, National Objective: LMC, Regulatory Citation: 570.201(e)) |

| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| Estimate the number and | 20 Households |
| type of families that will | |
| benefit from the | |
| proposed activities | |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Eye Care for Older Residents |

| Project Name | 10. Public Service Emergency Payments (CDBG-PSG) 2022-2023 |
|--|--|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Provide Public Service |
| Needs Addressed | Public Services |
| Funding | CDBG: \$60,000 |
| Description | Emergency payments on behalf of households for the purpose of preventing homelessness. Includes utility and rent/mortgage payments to prevent eviction. A maximum of three (3) months will be offered for the prevention of homelessness (Matrix code: 05Q Subsistence Payments, National Objective: LMC, Regulatory Citation: 570.201(e) and exception 570.207(b)(4)) |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities | 12 Households |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Emergency Assistance |

| Project Name | 11. Public Improvements (CDBG) FY 2022-2023 |
|----------------------------|---|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Improve Infrastructure and Public Facilities |
| Needs Addressed | Public Infrastructure and Facility Improvement |
| Funding | CDBG: \$100,000 |
| Description | Assisting with Handicapped accessibility and energy efficiency improvements to Senior Center Facility |
| | (Matrix code: 03A Senior Centers, National Objective: LMC, Regulatory Citation: 570.201(c)) |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and | 1 Facility |
| type of families that will | |
| benefit from the | |
| proposed activities | |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Public Improvement |

| Project Name | 12. Affordable Housing Development (CDBG) FY 2022-2023 |
|-----------------|---|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Increase and Improve Supply of Affordable Housing |
| Needs Addressed | Affordable Housing |
| Funding | CDBG: \$1,818,610 |
| Description | Acquisition and or rehabilitation of real property for affordable housing. Property will be acquired and rehabilitated to meet basic housing standards. Acquisition of this property will help increase and maintain the affordable housing stock in Turlock. (Matrix code: 01 Acquisition of Real Property, National Objective: LMH, Regulatory Citation: 570.201) |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |

| Estimate the num | and 2 families/households | |
|----------------------|--|--|
| type of families the | ill in the second s | |
| benefit from the | | |
| proposed activitie | | |
| Location Descript | City of Turlock | |
| Planned Activities | Affordable Housing | |
| | | |

| Project Name | 13. Program Administration (CDBG) FY 2022-2023 |
|----------------------------|--|
| Target Areas | Turlock |
| Goals Supported | Administration |
| Needs Addressed | Public Infrastructure and Facility Improvement |
| | Affordable Housing |
| | Community and Economic Development |
| | Public Services |
| | Homeless Services |
| | Community Emergency Responses |
| Funding | CDBG: \$125,402 |
| Description | Program Administration |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and | N/A |
| type of families that will | |
| benefit from the | |
| proposed activities | |
| Location Description | City of Turlock |
| Planned Activities | Program Administration |

| Project Name | 14. Consortium Affordable Housing (HOME) FY 2022-2023 |
|--|---|
| Target Areas | Turlock, Ceres, Hughson, Newman, Oakdale, Patterson, Riverbank, Waterford, Unincorporated Stanislaus County |
| Goals Supported | Increase and Improve Supply of Affordable Housing |
| Needs Addressed | Affordable Housing |
| Funding | HOME: \$3,362,765 |
| Description | Acquisition of property and or land for the development of affordable housing. Acquire and or rehabilitate properties and or covenants to provide affordable rental housing to income eligible clients. Properties may be transferred to non-profit agencies to provide property management services. (Regulatory Citation: 92.205) |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and type of families that will benefit from the proposed activities | 12 families/units |
| Location Description | HOME Consortium service area |
| Planned Activities | Acquisition of property and or land for the development of affordable housing. |

| Project Name | 15. Housing Rehabilitation (HOME) FY 2022-2023 |
|-----------------|--|
| Target Areas | Turlock, Ceres, Hughson, Newman, Oakdale, Patterson, Riverbank, Waterford, Unincorporated Stanislaus County |
| Goals Supported | Increase and Improve Supply of Affordable Housing |
| Needs Addressed | Affordable Housing |
| Funding | HOME: \$100,000 |
| Description | Consortium wide housing rehabilitation for both owner and renter occupied units and delivery costs. The Consortium will offer loans and grants to maintain single and multifamily affordable housing stock for low to moderate income clientele. The program serves as a way to preserve and maintain affordable housing units. Rehabilitate existing housing (Regulatory Citation: 92.205) |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |

| Estimate the number and | 4 families/units |
|----------------------------|---|
| type of families that will | |
| benefit from the | |
| proposed activities | |
| Location Description | HOME Consortium service area |
| Planned Activities | Consortium wide housing rehabilitation for both owner and renter occupied units and delivery costs. |

| Project Name | 16. First Time Home Buyer Assistance (HOME) FY 2022-2023 |
|----------------------------|--|
| Target Areas | Turlock, Ceres, Hughson, Newman, Oakdale, Patterson, Riverbank, Waterford, Unincorporated Stanislaus County |
| Goals Supported | Affordable Housing |
| Needs Addressed | Affordable Housing |
| Funding | HOME: \$300,000 |
| Description | First Time Home Buyer Assistance. Down payment assistance program for first time home buyers. HOME funds will be provided to income eligible clients for the purchase of their first home. Funds can be used for down payment and or closing costs associated with the loan. (Regulatory Citation: 92.205) |
| Target Date | 6/30/2023 |
| Estimate the number and | 6 families/households |
| type of families that will | |
| benefit from the | |
| proposed activities | |
| Location Description | HOME Consortium service area |
| Planned Activities | Down payment assistance program for first time home buyers. |

AP-50 Geographic Distribution

Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and minority concentration) where assistance will be directed

Stanislaus County and Turlock do not have plans to pursue any official HUD designated geographic based priority areas. Funds will be allocated within each jurisdiction based on program eligibility and in accordance with priority needs and goals outlined in this section.

There are three specific HUD goals for the CDBG program. They are:

- · Provide decent housing
- Provide a suitable living environment
- Expand economic opportunities

The Priority Needs section within this Consolidated Plan identifies the key priority needs in both the Urban County and the City of Turlock. These priority needs are reflected in the projects identified above. More specifically, the needs expressed by data in the Needs Assessment and Market Analysis are taken into account when considering projects to allocate resources to.

Obstacles in addressing underserved needs are:

- · A lack of available funds and resources
- The constraints and restrictions of the funding programs requirements

AP-55 Affordable Housing

Introduction

The tables in this section provide estimates on the number of homeless, non-homeless, and special needs households to be provided affordable housing during the program year and the number of affordable units that will be provided by program type, including rental assistance, production of new units, rehabilitation of existing units, or acquisition of existing units.

| One Year Goals for the Number of Households to be Supported | |
|---|---|
| Homeless | 0 |
| Non-Homeless | 0 |
| Special-Needs | 4 |
| Total | 4 |

| One Year Goals for the Number of Households Supported Through | |
|---|----|
| Rental Assistance | 12 |
| The Production of New Units | 0 |
| Rehab of Existing Units | 8 |
| Acquisition of Existing Units | 3 |
| Total | 23 |

Discussion

Housing assistance and programs were identified as a community need via the Consolidated Plan process. In Fiscal Year 2022-2023, the City of Turlock and the HOME Consortium will continue to use funds available to address the variety of housing needs within the jurisdiction. Although the City of Turlock and the HOME Consortium have identified housing assistance and housing programs as priorities, the City of Turlock and HOME Consortium members' ability to contribute toward the provision and development of affordable housing programs/projects has been drastically limited both by the State of California's elimination of redevelopment agencies which was the most significant tool for the provision of affordable housing, economic development, job creation, and elimination of blight, as well as by the steadily increasing price of the housing market in terms of land, labor, construction, and materials.

AP-60 Public Housing

Introduction

The City of Turlock, Stanislaus Urban County, and the Stanislaus Regional Housing Authority (Housing Authority) continue to have a close working relationship and meet on an as-needed basis to discuss concerns relevant to public housing and other housing matters. The Housing Authority has three public housing developments in Turlock in addition to the more than 1,000 Housing Choice Vouchers in use in Turlock. The City will continue to work with the Housing Authority and other public and private housing and social service agencies to foster public housing improvements and resident initiatives.

Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing

The Housing Authority's mission is committed to addressing the unmet housing needs of residents and communities in the county, consistent with Federal, State, and local law. The Housing Authority owns and operates public housing units in addition to operating the Housing Choice Voucher Program.

The Housing Authority operates 647 conventional public housing units throughout Stanislaus County in five Asset Management Properties (AMP). AMP 1 contains a total of 149 units located in Oakdale, Turlock, Ceres, and Hughson. AMP 2 contains a total of 66 units located in Newman, Patterson, and Westley. The remaining 432 units are located in AMPs 3, 4, and 5 in the City of Modesto.

The Housing Authority operates several affordable housing programs in addition to Public Housing,

including year-round Farm Labor Housing, Seasonal Migrant Farm Worker Housing, and several smaller affordable housing properties including units funded under the Neighborhood Stabilization Program and the Housing Choice Voucher Program. These affordable housing programs will continue to operate in the 2022-2023 program year.

The Housing Authority is always working to increase the stock of affordable housing in Stanislaus County through other available resources, programs, and partnerships as opportunities arise.

Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and participate in homeownership

The Housing Authority previously implemented a services and communication "quality control" system that provides the Housing Authority with immediate customer feedback and identifies areas that may need improvement. The Housing Authority has also implemented a resident education program with regularly scheduled meetings and written communications on agency policy, rules, and leases.

Efforts to improve communications with residents and program participants include on site resident training/informational meetings, regular newsletters and flyers.

Efforts to improve communications with residents and program participants include: on site resident training/informational meetings, regular newsletters and flyers. The Housing Authority has implemented a "curbside" appearance program. The focus of the program is the exterior of buildings, parking areas, play grounds and other areas of the complexes. Rodent and insect problems are addressed when residents report a problem and/or on Annual Inspections. In an effort to better education residents concerning these problems, information is regularly provided through the Housing Authority newsletter. These actions have assisted the Housing Authority in creating an atmosphere which emphasizes customer satisfaction and communication.

Further, the Housing Authority has a Resident Advisory Board (RAB) which represents the residents assisted by the agency. The RAB assists in the development of the Housing Authority's five-year Plan. Resident involvement will continue to be supported in an effort to enhance the service delivery by taking into account input from those with lived experience.

These actions have assisted the Housing Authority in creating an atmosphere which emphasizes customer satisfaction and communication.

If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be

provided or other assistance

The Housing Authority is not designated as a troubled Housing Authority.

AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities

Homeless services are a high priority and homeless prevention activities are a medium priority. The ultimate goal is to increase housing stability and decrease incidents of homelessness in Stanislaus County by targeting funds to populations most in need, meeting both the immediate and long-term needs of the homeless, and avoiding the duplication of services by coordinating with service providers and the CoC. The focus of CoC funding has been to provide permanent supportive housing (PSH) for the chronically homeless, homeless veterans, and for homeless youth out of foster care.

Describe the jurisdictions one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness including:

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual needs

While the primary source of homeless funds in the Stanislaus Urban County is ESG funds, the City of Turlock is not an ESG entitlement jurisdiction. The City of Turlock's strategy remains in assisting and building the capacity of local nonprofits that provide services to the homeless. The City of Turlock will continue to engage those nonprofits in projects that build both capacity as well as options for them to generate nonfederal match to compete for ESG funds from Stanislaus Urban County.

The CoC will continue the implementation of the Coordinated Entry System (CES) to match those individuals experiencing homelessness to the services that best suit their needs including connecting homeless to housing opportunities. The CoC formed a CES Task Force that will continue to meet regularly to assist with the continued evolution and implementation of the CES and address any issues that arise. The CoC will provide continued training for participating service providers and continue developing any necessary tools to effectively manage the system. This matching of appropriate needs is the most effective use of resources and minimizes bottlenecks in the service delivery system.

The CoC has several programs that focus on outreach and individuals and family engagement. The Community Assessment, Response, and Engagement (CARE) Team's mission is to facilitate the expedited identification, assessment, and linkage of homeless individuals to housing and supportive services within Stanislaus County subject to the provisions of the Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) section 18999.8. This WIC Code section was added effective January 1, 2018, to authorize California counties to establish multidisciplinary personnel teams to address homelessness within the county. Every CARE Team member is tasked with conducting outreach and engagement. The strength of the CARE Team comes from the ability to leverage experience and expertise from multiple disciplines when assisting a CARE client. During the initial and on-going client contacts, rapport is developed, and client issues are

identified and prioritized. When issues are general, CARE Team members will link the client to a resource; whereas when the need is more specific, the relevant team member provides specialized care. For example, when the CARE Team identifies a CARE client who has agreed to take a mental health assessment, the CARE Team clinician will respond to the location to provide brief counseling, and schedule and conduct the mental health assessment. The need for this type of service was identified during the CARE planning process, and by implementing this, the CARE program is utilizing an innovative approach to meet the needs of the CARE population.

Designed as a first step in a Continuum of Care (CoC) plan of assistance, the ESG program strives to address the immediate needs of persons residing on the street and needing emergency shelter and transitional housing, as well as assisting their movement to independent living. While flexible in terms of serving all homeless subpopulations and preventing persons from becoming homeless, ESG program legislation and implementing regulations limit the types of activities and amounts of funds that can be spent on different activities.

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons

All individuals and families receiving services through the CoC are receiving care that is individualized. Meaning whether the individual/family is in an emergency shelter or a transitional shelter the most effective support the CoC can offer is that which directly meets the needs of the individual/family as opposed to a "one-sized-fits-all" type of support.

The service providers and stakeholders involved in the CoC meet monthly to discuss issues and concerns that arise, this discussion may also include a look forward to needs and gaps experienced by a specific sub-population. These meetings monthly meetings are an effective place to coordinate the support and care for those individuals and families that are in an emergency shelter or a transitional shelter. Service providers, community members, faith-based organizations, government agencies make up the Turlock Community Collaborative (TCC). This group assist the Turlock is determining and addressing the needs of the homeless in the city. The TCC is a recognized committee of CoC.

Short-term strategies for addressing the emergency and transitional housing needs of homeless persons include but are not limited to the following:

- Expanding street outreach efforts to prioritize the needs of persons living outside, especially those whose health is compromised.
- Sustaining existing emergency shelter inventory and helping those in shelter exit to permanent housing through rental assistance and case management addressing specific barriers to obtaining and retaining housing.
- Try to expand the capacity of non-profit agencies that assist emergency shelter and transitional housing.

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families

with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were recently homeless from becoming homeless again

The Stanislaus Urban County and City of Turlock Homeless Strategy places a high priority on providing rental assistance and housing relocation and stabilization services to persons and households experiencing homelessness. The City of Turlock recognizes that without ESG entitlement funding, the City must apply competitively through the State of California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD). The City is working to assist nonprofits in building capacity so that they can effectively compete for ESG funds to serve the community.

The Continuum of Care (CoC) strategies encourage providing homeless households with housing quickly and in conjunction with supportive services which are of greatest need to support stable housing; other needs households may have should be addressed through existing mainstream resources available in the community. This reflects an emphasis on both homelessness prevention and rapid re-housing.

Permanent housing destinations generally include an apartment or house, permanent supportive housing, or living permanently with friends or family. A return to homelessness is indicated by a new entry in a homeless residential program (emergency shelter, transitional housing, rapid re-housing) within 365 days after exiting to permanent housing.

Ending the cycle of homelessness requires a combination of this rental assistance, homeless prevention, re-housing, and permanent supportive housing programs along with long-range homeless reduction strategies.

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely low-income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, employment, education, or youth needs.

The State has policies in place that require health care facilities to participate in regional planning meetings and develop a specific document to identify best practices for the post-hospital transition of homeless patients, methods to establish and support effective communications between hospitals and stakeholders regarding this transition, and the identification of resources. Local health care facilities have specific protocols in place requiring a safe discharge for all patients. In 2008, the Stanislaus County Public Health Agency reestablished the task force to review the current protocol in place and address any gaps in services necessary to ensure successful discharge planning services. The Public Health

Agency has become actively involved in the Continuum of Care (CoC) and working toward developing liaisons with housing services agencies in the CoC to update the existing discharge planning protocol. Currently in place there are discharge planning social workers on staff at the hospitals who work with service providers to locate appropriate housing and prevent the release of patients to the streets or to HUD McKinney-Vento funded emergency shelters, transitional, or permanent housing units.

Representatives from Behavioral Health and Recovery Services (BHRS) and the Community Services Agency (CSA) regularly attend the monthly CoC meetings and are active participants in discharge coordination planning, in particular for homeless individuals, throughout Stanislaus County, including Turlock.

For adults recently released from custody, Stanislaus County addresses housing issues through the Day Reporting Center (DRC). The Sheriff's Department conducts Probation Orientation Meetings at the DRC in which several programs have participated in the past including Solidarity, Teen Challenge, and Gospel Mission. As a result of the CoC's coordination with the Probation Department, the Stanislaus County Sheriff's and Probation Departments also recently began a diversion program, where homeless individuals who would otherwise be jailed for minor crimes are able to stay at the Salvation Army shelter facility, where they receive shelter and case management services. Collaboration with public service providers and the Probation Department is ongoing.

AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing

Introduction

The Stanislaus Urban County works with the City of Turlock in efforts to provide affordable housing opportunities. One of the main barriers to affordable housing, both rental and homeownership, has been the supply of affordable housing units. For residents that are renting, the rents in the area have increased and made it difficult for renters to move or new renters to find housing units. In the area of homeownership, many residents are outpriced and cannot afford to purchase the homes that are available. Some of the barriers that impact the availability of affordable housing are outlined below.

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs): Separate living quarters on a property (also called a "granny flat" or "guesthouse" can add additional housing units into single-family residential neighborhoods. Government regulations of ADUs can reduce or eliminate this housing development. Passage of numerous California legislative bills in 2017 and 2019 have eliminated many of the local impediments to the construction of ADU's and all Urban County jurisdictions are working update their ordinance to comply with the State's new ADU laws. In the interim state law prevails.

Shortage of Affordable Housing Funding: The availability of funding for affordable housing has dropped dramatically in the past decade for all jurisdictions in California that do not have local public or private housing funds. Dissolution of redevelopment agencies in the State of California in 2012, including the Modesto Redevelopment Agency, resulted in a significant drop in funding for housing projects.

Competition for tax credits and other State funding with cities in California and diminished amounts of HUD funding create a shortage of affordable housing.

Planning and Development Fees: Housing development imposes short- and long-term costs upon local government, such as the cost of providing site reviews, permitting and inspection, and maintaining General Plan and zoning regulations addressing housing development. Jurisdictions also charge impact fees to offset the cost of providing the infrastructure and public facilities that are required to serve new housing development. To help recoup costs and ensure that essential services and infrastructure are available when needed, Stanislaus County jurisdictions charge various types of development fees. The fee amounts vary based on the needs of each jurisdiction and the services provided.

The fees can be a significant factor in housing development throughout California, raising housing costs and disincentivizing new residential development, factors that contribute to statewide high housing costs. Among California jurisdictions, fees account for between six and eighteen percent of the price of housing. (Terner Center for Housing Innovation- UC Berkeley, It All Adds Up: The Cost of Housing Development Fees in Seven California Cities, March 2018.)

As a best practice, the public and developers should be able to access a jurisdiction's current fee schedules to estimate fees as a part of total development project costs in advance. Until 1978, property taxes were the primary revenue source for financing the construction of infrastructure and improvements for residential development in California. Proposition 13, passed in 1978, limited a local jurisdiction's ability to raise property taxes and increasing reliance on other funding sources to provide infrastructure, public improvements, and public services. An alternative funding source widely used among local governments in California is the development impact fee, which is charged to the project developers/owners, for publicly provided infrastructure that supports the development, including water and sewer facilities, parks, and transportation. Continued in "Discussion"

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the return on residential investment

Potential constraints to housing development vary by area throughout the Stanislaus Urban County, but generally include cost of infrastructure, residential development fees, development standards, land use entitlement processing times, and limited funding for affordable housing development. Barriers to housing also include personal barriers such as poor credit history, involvement with the law, limited knowledge about tenants' rights and the complaints process.

Development Process: To expedite project facilitation and provide internal support to project applicants, the Stanislaus Urban County will continue to undertake efforts to build relationships between the Stanislaus Urban County and the development community to identify the barriers and

constraints to the development of affordable housing to identify public/private partnership opportunities for the development of affordable housing.

Fee Structure: The Stanislaus Urban County will continue to review its fee systems as a means of reducing the cost of housing development. The Stanislaus Urban County members recognize that fees can affect the cost of construction of affordable housing in the community.

Subdivision Improvement Standards and Zoning Ordinance: The Stanislaus Urban County will review and provide input to modify Subdivision Improvements Standards, where reasonable and appropriate, to provide cost savings in the development of residential units while continuing to ensure the public health, safety, and welfare of residents.

Affordable Housing: The Stanislaus Urban County will continue to assign priority to educating the residents of Stanislaus County regarding the importance of providing affordable housing to support job growth. This will be done through public education, public participation, and fair housing information.

The Stanislaus Urban County and its member cities will continue to monitor constraints and where possible, undertake efforts that can address these constraints and their effect on the provision of affordable housing.

Discussion

For jurisdictions to charge an impact fee, the California Mitigation Fee Act requires that the jurisdiction demonstrate the "nexus" between the type of development in question and the impact being mitigated by the proposed fee, and that fee amount be proportional to the impact caused by the development. Fees not covered by the California Mitigation Fee Act include inclusionary housing ordinance in-lieu fees, permit processing fees, utility connection fees, and fees included within specific development agreements between a jurisdiction and a developer.

Despite state law limiting direct impact fees, the fees can be a large part of a jurisdiction's total fee requirements for housing development. Because developers tend to pass these fees onto the final housing owner, the effects of reducing these fees on housing affordability depend on the amount of the fee reduction and current home prices. Because the eventual owner bears the brunt of fees, high fees limit development of lower-cost housing more than higher-cost housing. (Terner Center for Housing Innovation- UC Berkeley, Current Practices and Policy Considerations to Improve Implementation of Fees Governed by the Mitigation Fee Act, August 2019)

A reduction in development fees for low-income housing may help these projects become financially feasible. A jurisdiction deferring development fees until a certain time after project completion can also help add flexibility the project's upfront costs and assist in the development of low-income housing.

Municipal Processing Time:

The processing time required to obtain full approval of a development project is often cited as a contributing factor to the high cost of housing in the State of California Review and legislative approval, while often necessary steps in the development process, add to the cost of construction by increasing land holding costs and interest payments. Governments are not always able to control delays when multiple levels of government that must communicate, review, and approve plans, delays due to the schedule or timing of legislative boards of approval, or delays based on the amount of municipal staff capacity to review plans when demand for services is high.

Prevailing Wages:

Davis-Bacon prevailing wage must be paid to laborers when federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) dollars are used to pay for any construction project over \$2,000 or on any multifamily housing project over eight units. Prevailing wage must also be paid on any HOME-funded multifamily housing project that directly funds twelve or more units. While competitive wages are currently high, Davis-Bacon wages may be higher and add additional cost to housing construction and rehabilitation activities.

California's Prevailing Wage Law requires contractors to pay minimum wage rates on public works projects that support housing construction such as roads, water and sewer projects, and other public utilities. The rates are set by the California Department of Industrial Relations. These additional costs could add to local costs for housing development.

Expiration of Affordability Contracts:

Affordability contracts with private property owners have a time limit that runs out after a contractuallyset number of years. Unless the affordability contracts are renewed with the property owner, the affordable rental housing units will expire and become market-rate housing.

AP-85 Other Actions

Introduction

The Stanislaus Urban County and the City of Turlock, through the Consolidated Consortium Plan, targets Federal funds to residents who have traditionally not been served, or are underserved by programs. Project activities funded through the Consolidated Plan are carefully designed to provide appropriate and needed services, particularly to those who may not be eligible for assistance from other sources, or are geographically isolated by lack of transportation, or lack basic amenities, particularly medical care, in their neighborhoods.

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs

One of the ongoing challenges in meeting the needs of the underserved is the lack of sufficient funding for services provided by local governments, non-profit organizations, and other agencies. Service

providers faced with this challenge are expected to provide more and more services with the same, if not smaller, budgets every year. The Stanislaus Urban County and the City of Turlock will continue to seek funding opportunities through different sources, encourage projects or programs that leverage funds, and ensure that projects and programs are operated as effectively and efficiently as possible.

The Stanislaus Urban County and the City of Turlock will continue being an involved stakeholder in the CoC and the newly formed Stanislaus Homeless Alliance (SHA). These organizations both function to bring stakeholders and residents together to identify needs, service gaps, and potential solutions and partnerships to address housing and homelessness needs within the region.

The Housing Authority supports low- and moderate-income families throughout the region, and also play a key role in overcoming obstacles in meeting needs. Through working closely with the Housing Authority, Stanislaus Urban County and the City of Turlock, will continue to support the Housing Authority in their efforts to first identify needs and further meet those needs.

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing

As stated throughout the Con Plan and AAP, affordable housing is considered a high priority. Accordingly, the use of the HOME funding is prioritized for the development and rehabilitation of affordable housing that serves low-income households. Affordable housing strategies include both development of new affordable housing units as well as the preservation/conservation of existing affordable housing units.

The City of Turlock and Stanislaus Urban County relies on private non-profit organizations and for-profit developers to acquire, develop, or rehabilitate affordable units. Turlock will be seeking distressed properties to renovate and create additional affordable housing units. The Stanislaus Urban County will continue to work closely with these entities to ensure that each year as many new affordable units are produced, or rehabilitated, as possible.

Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards

The Housing Authority serves as the lead agency for the City of Turlock and Stanislaus Urban County in the identification, documentation, and prevention of lead poisoning. The Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program of Stanislaus County, administered through the Housing Authority, becomes involved with childhood lead-based poisoning when notification of an elevated screening blood level is received either from the laboratory or physician. If the blood level is 10ug/dL (micrograms per deciliter), notification is made to the family. Once a child meets the case definition, an environmental investigation is performed by a Registered Environmental Health Specialist to determine, if possible, the source of lead exposure. The Housing Authority, in partnership with the Department of Environmental Resources, conducts the investigation of residences where children with elevated levels of lead reside.

Stanislaus Urban County and the City of Turlock partner with the Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program to distribute information in the City and unincorporated areas of Stanislaus County and

through members of the HOME Consortium. If the source of lead exposure is related to the residential physical environment (e.g., peeling paint that indicates the presence of lead), then the Housing Rehabilitation Program may participate in source eradication.

The Housing Authority actively addresses the issue of lead-based paint hazards by providing notices to landlords and tenants who participate in the Housing Choice Voucher Program, warning them of the hazards of lead-based paint. The City of Turlock and HOME Consortium Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program and homebuyers who use HOME and CDBG fund are provided the notices by the member jurisdictions. Additionally, all units that are rehabilitated with CDBG and HOME funds are subject to lead-based paint compliance requirements.

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families

The Turlock HOME Consortium, and Stanislaus Urban County work to reduce poverty through ensuring an adequate, affordable, quality housing supply, improving low-income neighborhoods, strengthening the employment skills of the community and ensuring access to basic needs such as food and shelter. The City of Turlock is particularly focused on ensuring quality housing options to low-income individuals through the production of new low-income units as well as the rehabilitation of existing lowincome units and combating rental discrimination against minorities.

The City of Turlock and the Stanislaus Urban County updated the Analysis to Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (AI) alongside the development of this Consolidated Plan and outlined ways in which each jurisdiction can take actions to ensure protected classes have equitable access to quality schools and employers. The AI investigates zoning codes, permit processes, and fees to ensure the County and each City within are as accommodating as possible to those developments and employers that will contribute to reducing poverty and increasing economic opportunity and housing stability.

The City of Turlock realizes that it cannot combat poverty alone, and it is a top priority of the City of Turlock to coordinate with other entities when possible. The City of Turlock is particularly committed to coordinating with Stanislaus County which manages many housing and social service programs. The City of Turlock also coordinates with other entities such as the CoC and various community-oriented nonprofit groups that have a stake in the community. It is a top goal of the City of Turlock to ensure that it accesses all available grant money to assist the community.

The CoC has developed into a more coordinated organization over the past five years, and the City of Turlock as well as the County will continue to leverage those partnerships and resources to address the issues of poverty.

The Stanislaus County Alliance WorkNet (Alliance), The Community Services Agency's CalWorks Program, and the California Employment Development Department are all resources available to persons seeking employment.

In addition, the City of Turlock, through its economic development efforts, strives to promote activities

that will ultimately have major impacts on the community, such as job creation that in turn will reduce poverty. The Alliance partners with Stanislaus County, Turlock and the other cities in fulfilling the following objectives:

- Promotion of Stanislaus County and its nine incorporated cities as a desirable location for new and expanding businesses.
- To work with public agencies and local businesses to promote cooperation in the economic development process.
- To assist in business retention and expansion efforts by offering programs for technical and financial assistance.

In addition, the City of Turlock, through its economic development efforts, strives to promote activities that will ultimately have major impacts on the community, such as job creation that in turn will reduce poverty.

The Alliance maintains a small revolving loan fund for gap financing. Typically, the Alliance will provide up to half the business financing needs while a bank provides the other half. The Alliance revolving loans are for terms of up to seven years and are at competitive interest rates.

Actions planned to develop institutional structure

The City of Turlock relies on the nonprofit service sector to provide emergency shelter, transitional and special needs housing, and services to the homeless population. The City of Turlock will fully continue to support these organizations and their activities.

The Continuum of Care (CoC) continues to work to improve services provided, including data collection quality through the HMIS system, to ensure that participants receiving services do not experience any gaps as they strive to reach their goals of independence from the need of public services in the community. To the extent that a gap exists in the institutional structure, a strategy of the Action Plan is to take action to close that gap.

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies

The City of Turlock and HOME Consortium rely on private nonprofit organizations and for-profit developers to build and acquire, develop, and rehabilitate affordable units. The City and HOME Consortium will continue to work closely with these entities to ensure that each year as many new affordable units are produced, or are available, as possible.

The City of Turlock also relies on the nonprofit service sector to provide emergency shelter and transitional and special needs housing. The City will continue to support these organizations and their

activities.

The City of Turlock, as administrator of the HOME Consortium, coordinates and consults with other program providers, local, State, and Federal government entities, nonprofit and for-profit organizations and business, professional organizations, interest groups, and other parties interested in the implementation of federal programs.

Specifically, they are: the Housing Authority; HUD; BHRS; HCD; Stanislaus County Health Services Agency; Stanislaus County Community Services Agency; U.S. Department of Agriculture/Rural Development; U.S. Economic Development Administration; California Coalition for Affordable Housing; Habitat for Humanity; Stanislaus County Affordable Housing Corporation; California Rural Legal Assistance; and Self-Help Enterprises. This will assure that the activities outlined in the Annual Action Plan are given the fullest attention for design and implementation or construction.

The City of Turlock will continue to participate in regularly scheduled meetings with other jurisdictions and Stanislaus County to coordinate any CDBG-, HOME-, and ESG-funded activity that may be of benefit to each separate entitlement community in Stanislaus County. This will assure that the activities outlined in the Action Plan are given the fullest attention for design and implementation or construction.

The City of Turlock will maintain its membership and active involvement in the Continuum of Care (CoC) to continue outreach and information sharing with other Stanislaus County agencies serving similar clientele.

AP-90 Program Specific Requirements

Introduction

There are three specific goals of the Federal CDBG and HOME programs:

- 1. Provide decent housing.
- 2. Provide a suitable living environment.
- 3. Expand economic opportunities.

The Action Plan has been developed to assist in achieving these three goals. The overriding consideration required of the CDBG program is to benefit those members of the population that meet the definition of Targeted Income. A Targeted Income person is one who earns 80% or less of the AMI for CDBG funds. Additionally, if a project benefits a specific neighborhood or community, at least 51% of the population within that geographic boundary must be within the Targeted Income Group (TIG).

As identified by the Consolidated Plan for Fiscal Years 2022-2023, priority will be given to projects in the following areas: Infrastructure, Economic Development, Housing Assistance, Housing Programs, and

Public Services.

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) Reference 24 CFR 91.220(I)(1)

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in projects to be carried out.

| 1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the | 100,000 |
|--|---------|
| next program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed | |
| 2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the | 0 |
| year to address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's | |
| strategic plan. | |
| 3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements | 0 |
| 4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use | 0 |
| has not been included in a prior statement or plan | |
| 5. The amount of income from float-funded activities | 0 |
| Total Program Income: | 100,000 |

Other CDBG Requirements

| 1. The amount of urgent need activities | |
|---|---------|
| 2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit | |
| persons of low and moderate income. Overall Benefit - A consecutive period of one, two or | |
| three years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70% of CDBG | |
| funds is used to benefit persons of low and moderate income. Specify the years covered | |
| that include this Annual Action Plan. | 100.00% |

HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) Reference 24 CFR 91.220(I)(2)

1. <u>A description of other forms of investment being used beyond those identified in Section 92.205 is</u> <u>as follows:</u>

The City will permit HOME funds to be invested as loans, grants, deferred payment loans, and other types of investment permitted by the regulations described in 92.205(b). The City will not permit other forms of investment without the prior approval of HUD.

The Consortium members generally use HOME funds for First Time Home Buyer, rehabilitation, and acquisition. For First Time Home Buyer and rehabilitation loans and grants eligible applicants will be at 80% of the AMI or below and will be provided funds on a first come first serve basis. Detailed

information regarding the programs is provided on member's individual websites.

2. <u>A description of the guidelines that will be used for resale or recapture of HOME funds when used</u> for homebuyer activities as required in 92.254, is as follows:

The HOME statute states that resale provisions must limit subsequent purchase of the property to income-eligible families, provide the owner with a fair return on investment, including any improvements, and ensure that the housing will remain affordable to a reasonable range of low-income homebuyers. The HOME statue also specifies that recapture provisions must recapture the HOME investment from available net proceeds in order to assist other HOME-eligible families. The City of Turlock elected to establish a recapture provision of its program. At no time does the City expect to use the resale provision as it was not requested or approved as required by HUD.

In cases where the net proceeds available at the time of sale are insufficient to recapture the entire direct HOME subsidy provided to the homebuyer, the HOME Consortium is not required to repay the difference between the total direct HOME subsidy and the amount the HOME Consortium is able to recapture from available net proceeds. The net proceeds are the sales price minus loan repayment (other than HOME funds) and closing costs. In applying the option of the recapture provision, the following formula will be used:

HOME investment / (HOME investment + Home Owner investment) X Net proceeds = HOME amount to be repaid

Home Owner investment / (HOME investment + Home Owner investment) X Net proceeds = Amount to Home Owner

Affordable Homeownership Limits: HUD provides the HOME affordable homeownership limits (initial purchase price or after-rehabilitation value of homeownership units assisted with HOME funds not exceed 95 percent of the area median purchase price for single family housing. Under the Code of Federal Regulations at title 24, part 92, section 254, paragraph (a)(2)(iii) HUD allows jurisdictions to prepare a market analysis to determine this limit following HUD guidance.

The 95 percent of median area purchase price must be established in accordance with a market analysis that ensured that a sufficient number of recent housing sales are included in the survey. Sales must cover the requisite number of months based on volume. The address of the listed properties must include the location within the Consortia's jurisdiction. The housing sales data must reflect all, or nearly all, of the one-family house sales in the entire Consortia jurisdiction. After identifying the median sales price per HUD's guidance, the amount should be multiplied by 0.95 to determine the 95 percent of the median area purchase price. Final limits were rounded to the nearest thousand. Turlock will use the highest limit determined by HUD or the survey. The analysis limits for the Consortia members are: Ceres \$394,000, Hughson \$537,000, Newman \$428,000, Oakdale \$437,000, Patterson \$504,000, Riverbank \$461,000, Stanislaus County \$461,000, Turlock

\$446,000, and Waterford \$390,000.

3. <u>A description of the guidelines for resale or recapture that ensures the affordability of units acquired</u> with HOME funds? See 24 CFR 92.254(a)(4) are as follows:

In the case of affordability, the HOME Consortium recaptures the entire amount of the direct HOME subsidy provided to the homebuyer before the homebuyer receives a return. The HOME Consortium's recapture amount is limited to the net proceeds available from the sale.

Affordability for homeownership projects undertaken using the recapture provision will be ensured through the use of real estate lien notes and/or restrictive covenants outlining the City's recapture provisions. Homeownership projects undertaken using the resale provision shall use deed restrictions, covenants running with the land, or other similar mechanisms per 92.254(a)(5)(i)(A) to ensure the resale requirements are met. The period of affordability specified in the mortgage will be the minimum period for the project as specified above. The period of affordability is based on the total amount of direct HOME funds invested in the housing project.

4. <u>Plans for using HOME funds to refinance existing debt secured by multifamily housing that is</u> rehabilitated with HOME funds along with a description of the refinancing guidelines required that will be used under 24 CFR 92.206(b), are as follows:

The City of Turlock and the HOME Consortium do not intend to refinance any kind of existing debt with HOME funds.

City of Turlock

Annual Action Plan

For CDBG funds and Turlock/Stanislaus Urban County HOME Consortium funds Fiscal Year 2022-2023

Public Participation Information and Comments

04/05/22 Ad run in Modesto Bee an English newspaper in English and Spanish.

Copy attached.

04/09/22 Public meeting on Saturday 10:00 a.m. via Zoom No public attendees.

04/13/22 Public meeting 5:00 p.m. via Zoom p.m. No public attendees.

04/19/22 Turlock Community Collaborative Meeting, 1:30 p.m.

An Annual Action Plan presentation was provided by staff to collaborative members made up of community members and no-profit organizations/service providers. Approximately 20 in attendance and information is provided to all members via email.

04/21/22 Stanislaus Continuum of Care (SCoC) meeting 230 p.m. via Zoom

Presentations for County AAP and Turlock AAP were provided at the Stanislas Continuum of Care (SCoC) regular meeting. Approximate 30 were in attendance via Zoom. Private citizen groups along with Neighborhood and public service agency representatives attend.

06/08/22 Ad run in the Modesto Bee an English newspaper in English and Spanish

Copy attached.

06/29/22 Community meeting, 5:00 p.m., Yosemite Conference room, In-person meeting

An Annual Action Plan presentation was provided to two members of the public who attended the meeting.

Comment Received:

We Care Director, Maris Sturtevant stated that she would like to see hotel/motel vouchers available for homeless with COVID.

07/26/22 Council meeting for action plan approval, 6:00 p.m.

Public attendance was approximately 32. There were 17 Turlock employees and Council and the remaining 15 were Turlock residents. The majority of the questions were not directly related to the Annual Action Plan but rather complaints, program questions and or uses of funds (some included below for reference but not exclusive to all remarks made).

Public comments:

Dale Parkinson-

Q: A two-story building has been left in a derelict situation out in the elements for years near downtown (Olive and Golden state). Can City purchase and use for senior or homeless?

Response was provided by Council member- Planning has been working on the specific building to resolve.

Mr. Bridegroom-

Q: What was the difference between the Annual Action Plan and the Annual agreements. Wanted clarification on the meetings held for Plan as to if they were open to the public or non-profits. He was not sure when meetings were held.

Response: SCoC- community meeting, non-profits and public service agencies and the public. Turlock Community collaborative- Most attendees are non-profit agencies. Community meetings on Zoom and in person open to the public.

Q: Asked for homeless providers funding and where it went. (not funding related to AAP). Asked about homeless funding provided to TGM (storing possessions of homeless).

Response: HEAP funds used derived from County for three projects 585,000. Turlock was a subrecipient. One project was for a pilot homeless storage program with TGM. Property purchased adjacent to their facility. Working with TGM to bring back to program purpose.

Q Wants community wide data on homeless. How many people are we getting out of being homeless? End goal is not to sustain them but to get them out of homelessness.

Commented that the City could possibly buy property and tear down and put in infrastructure for low cost housing, such as mobile homes.

Response: Housing Division only has data available division funded programs not all homeless funded programs in Turlock. Staff may be able to outreach to local agencies.

Gil Esquer-

Q: Homeless situation going on for years. We have tried to group all issues into a ball. Traumatic issue-lost home. Group of people that don't want homes.

Divide them up and find out the ones that want the help and help them first. City should buy property and place them there.

Response: Housing does a similar program to purchase properties and provide them for low income housing with non-profit agencies.

Lenny- (self-identified homeless person)

Q: Had personal comments but they did not relate to the plan.

Response: No questions to respond to regarding the plan

Ad run 4/5/22 in Modesto Bee



the local division in the

a. the strength ----

Copy of text below



Public Notice City of Turlock and Turlock/Stanislaus County HOME Consortium 2022-2023 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN



The City of Turlock and the Turlock/Stanislaus County HOME Consortium will be developing its Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Annual Action Plan Between April 7, 2022 and May 6, 2022. The Annual Action Plan (AAP) outlines the City's and Consortium's housing and community development needs, and provides a one-year action plan on how the City and Consortium intends to use its federal funds in order to address those needs. These plans, which include the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment partnerships (HOME) funding for the Turlock/Stanislaus County HOME Consortium identify community development activities designed to address the needs of low- and moderate-income persons. If you would like to provide comments, the City and County welcomes your attendance at any of the meetings listed below. Additionally, comments may be provided by phone, regular mail, or email via the contact information listed at the bottom of this notice for both English speakers and those with limited English proficiency.

Public Hearings: The City and County will hold these hearings to receive comments and consider adoption of the corresponding 2022-2023 Annual Action Plan (AAP) at the following dates and locations.

Community Meetings: Zoom April 9th, Saturday at 10:00 am (see city and county website for Zoom meeting link) Zoom April 13th Wednesday at 5:00 pm (see city and county website for Zoom meeting link)

May 3, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. County of Stanislaus Board of Supervisors Meeting 1010 Tenth Street, Basement Training, Board Chambers, Modesto, CA 95354 www.stancounty.com/planning

> May 10, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. City Council Meeting (plan presentation to council) City of Turlock, Yosemite Community Room (2nd floor) 156 South Broadway, Turlock, CA 95380 https://ci.turlock.ca.us

These locations are handicapped accessible. Reasonable accommodations for the disabled may be arranged with 72 hours advance notification or TDD 1-800-735-2929 (hearing impaired only). Any changes to the meeting location or process for providing public comment will be posted on the corresponding websites above.

Public Comment Period: The Annual Action Plans will be available for a 30-day public review with the comment period beginning April 7, 2022 and ending May 6, 2022. Citizens and groups are encouraged to submit written or verbal comments during this period. Comments received will be considered and evaluated to determine appropriateness and feasibility for inclusion in the corresponding documents. Turlock's and the County's Annual Action Plans will be available for public review on the corresponding websites during the comment period:

City of Turlock Website at: https://ci.turlock.ca.us/

Stanislaus County website: http://stancounty.com/planning/

If you have any questions regarding any of the documents identified in the notice, or have comments please use the contact information below.

<u>Turlock Comments</u>- Maria Ramos Housing Supervisor, 156 South Broadway, Suite 140, Turlock, CA 95380, E-mail: mramos@turlock.ca.us or by phone at (209) 668-5542 ext. 2236

<u>County Comments</u>- Ana San Nicolas, Community Development Manager, 1010 Tenth Street, Suite #3400, Modesto, CA 95354, E-mail: <u>CommunityDevelopment@stancounty.com</u> or by phone at (209) 525-6330.

Challenges in court to any of the items identified in this public notice may be limited to only those issues raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Turlock City Council at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Pursuant to California Constitution Article III, Section 6, establishing English as the official language for the State of California, notice is hereby given that all proceedings before the Turlock City Council shall be in English and anyone wishing to address the Council is required to have a translator present who will take an oath to make an accurate translation from any language not English into the English language.

AVISO PÚBLICO Y REUNIONES Ciudad de Turlock/Consorcio de Stanislaus County HOME PROPONE 2022-2023 PLAN DE ACCIÓN ANUAL



La Ciudad de Turlock y el Consorcio Turlock/Condado de Stanislaus HOME estará Creando su Plan de Acción Anual Para el año fiscal 2022-2023 entre el 7 DE ABRIL 2022 Y EL 6 DE MAYO 2022. El Plan de Acción Anual (AAP) describe la Ciudad y el Consorcio de las necesidades de vivienda y desarrollo comunitario, y proporciona un plan de acción de un año en la forma en que la Ciudad y el Consorcio tienen la intención de utilizar sus fondos Federales para hacer frente a esas necesidades. Estos Planes incluyen gastos de fondos de la beca de bloque de desarrollo de comunidad (CDBG) para la Ciudad de Turlock y asociaciones para Inversiones en Vivienda (HOME) financiación a la Ciudad de Turlock/Consorcio de Stanislaus County Estos planes, que incluyen la subvención en bloque de desarrollo comunitario (CDBG) y las asociaciones de inversión HOME del condado de Turlock / Stanislaus, identifican actividades de desarrollo comunitario diseñadas para abordar las necesidades de las personas de ingresos bajos y moderados. Si desea proporcionar comentarios, la ciudad y el condado agradecen su asistencia a cualquiera de las reuniones que se enumeran a continuación. Además, los comentarios se pueden proporcionar por teléfono, correo ordinario o correo electrónico a través de la información de contacto que se encuentra al final de este aviso, tanto para los hablantes de inglés como para los que tienen un dominio limitado del inglés.

<u>Audiencia Pública:</u> Las audiencias públicas de la Ciudad y el Condado se llevarán a cabo de la siguiente manera para recibir comentarios y considerar la adopción del Plan 2022-2023 de Acción Anual:

Juntas Comunitarias: Zoom Sabado, April 9, a las 10:00 am (mire el sitio del web de la Ciudad y Condado para detalles de Zoom) Zoom Jueves, April 13 a las 5:00 pm (mire el sitio del web de la Ciudad y Condado para detalles de Zoom)

3 de Mayo 2022 a las 9:00 a.m. Reunión de la Junta de Supervisores del Condado de Stanislaus 1010 Tenth Street, Cuarto de Entrenamiento en el sótano, Cámaras de Juntas, Modesto, CA 95354 www.stancounty.com/planning/

> 10 de Mayo 2022 a las 6:00 p.m. Reunión del Consejo municipal (presentación del plan al Consejo) Ciudad de Turlock, Cuarto de Comunidad Yosemite 156 S Broadway, Turlock, CA 95380 <u>https://ci.turlock.ca.us</u>

Estos lugares son accesibles para discapacitados. Se pueden organizar adaptaciones razonables para los discapacitados con una notificación con 72 horas de anticipación o TDD 1-800-735-2929 (solo para personas con problemas de audición). Cualquier cambio en la ubicación de la reunión o el proceso para proporcionar comentarios públicos se publicará en los sitios web correspondientes anteriores.

Período de comentarios Públicos: Los documentos estarán disponibles por 30 días para la revisión pública. El periodo de comentarios comenzara el 7 de Abril 2022 y termina el 6 de Mayo, 2022. Se anima la participación de los ciudadanos y los grupos a presentar comentarios escritos o verbales sobre los documentos durante este periodo. Los comentarios recibidos serán considerados y evaluados por la Ciudad de Turlock para determinar la idoneidad y la viabilidad para su inclusión en los documentos correspondientes. Los planes de acción anuales de Turlock y del condado estarán disponibles para revisión pública en los sitios web correspondientes durante el período de comentarios: Sitio web de la Ciudad de Turlock en: https://ci.turlock.ca.us/

Sitio web del Condado de Stanislaus en: http://stancounty.com/planning/

Si tiene alguna pregunta con respecto a cualquiera de los documentos identificados en el aviso, o tiene comentarios, utilice la información de contacto a continuación.

Comentarios de Turlock: Maria Ramos, Supervisora de Viviendas, 156 South Broadway, Suite 140, Turlock, CA 95380, correo electrónico: mramos@turlock.ca.us o por teléfono al (209) 668-5542 ext. 2227.

Comentarios del Condado: Ana San Nicolás, Gerente del Programa de Desarrollo Comunitario, 1010 Tenth Street, Suite #3400, Modesto, CA 95354, correo electrónico: CommunityDevelopment@stancounty.com o por teléfono al (209) 525-6330.

Desafíos en la corte para cualquiera de los elementos identificados en este aviso público pueden estar limitados a solo aquellas cuestiones plateadas en la audiencia pública, o en la correspondencia escrita entregada al Consejo de la Ciudad de Turlock, o antes de la audiencia pública.

De conformidad con la Constitución de California Artículo III, Sección 6, establece el inglés como lengua oficial para el Estado de California, se hace constar que todos los procedimientos ante el Consejo de la Ciudad de Turlock sean en Inglés y cualquier persona que dese dirigirse al Consejo está obligado a tener un traductor y tendrá que hacer un juramento para hacer una traducción exacta de cualquier idioma al Inglés.

6/8/22 ad in Modesto Bee



8/12/22